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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS el P %
SUMMIT COUNTY, OHIO e D
2o &
DAVID D. HACK, et al. ) CASE NO. 2011-10-5828 ﬁ\"
)
Plaintiffs, } JUDGE ROWLANDS
)
V. ) ERIC MANSFIELD’S AND WKYC
) TV,INC.’S ANSWER TO
ERIC MANSFIELD, et al. ) AMENDED COMPLAINT
Defendants. ;

For their Answer to the Amended Complaint filed by Plaintiffs David Hack (*Hack™) and
U.S. Wings, Inc. (“U.S. Wings”), Defendants Eric Mansfield and WKYC TV, Inc. (collectively
“the WKYC Defendants™) state as follows:

1. The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 1 of the
Amended Complaint for lack of knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of
those allegations.

2. The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 2 of the
Amended Complaint for lack of knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of
those allegations.

3. The WKYC Defendants deny that Mr. Mansfield is active in Ohio Democratic
party politics. The WKYC Defendants admit the remaining allegations set forth in Paragraph 3
of the Amended Complaint.

4, The WKYC Defendants admit the allegations set forth in Paragraph 4 of the

Amended Complaint.
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5. The WKYC Defendants deny that Mr. Mansfield supported Defendant Currin in
his bid for re-election as mayor of the City of Hudson, Ohio. The WKYC Defendants deny the
remaining allegations set forth in Paragraph 5 of the Amended Complaint for lack of knowledge
sufficient to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of those allegations.

6. The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 6 of the
Amended Complaint.

7. The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 7 of the
Amended Complaint.

8. The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 8 of the
Amended Complaint.

9. The WKYC Defendants admit the allegations set forth in Paragraph 9 of the
Amended Complaint.

10. The WKYC Defendants admit the allegations set forth in Paragraph 10 of the
Amended Complaint.

11.  The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 11 of the
Amended Complaint for lack of knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of
those allegations.

12.  The WKYC Defendants deny that any of their television broadcasts were link_ed
to any “false personal attacks” by Defendant Currin or others. The WKYC Defendants deny the
remaining allegations set forth in Paragraph 12 of the Amended Complaint for lack of knowledge
sufficient to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of those allegations.

13.  The allegations set forth in Paragraph 13 of the Amended Complaint call for a

legal conclusion and require no response from the WKYC Defendants.



14. The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 14 of the
Amended Complaint for lack of knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of
those allegations.

15 The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 15 of the
Amended Complaint for lack of knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of
those allegations.

16. The WKYC Defendants admit that Hack served in the United States military. The
WKYC Defendants deny the remaining allegations set forth in Paragraph 16 of the Amended
Complaint for lack of knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of those
allegations.

17. The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 17 of the
Amended Complaint for lack of knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of
those allegations.

18. The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 18 of the
Amended Complaint for lack of knowledge sutficient to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of
those allegations.

19.  The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 19 of the
Amended Complaint,

COUNT ONE
DEFAMATION

20. The WKYC Defendants hereby incorporate the foregoing responses to the
allegations set forth in Plaintiffs’ Amended Complaint.
21. The WKYC Defendants admit that they aired four news stories about

inconsistencies between Hack’s official military record and his own representations about his



record. Further answering, the WKYC Defendants admit that, in the broadcast aired October 13,
2011, Hack was referred to as running “under the GOP nomination” in the City of Hudson’s
mayoral race. The WKYC Defendants deny the remaining allegations set forth in Paragraph 21
of the Amended Complaint.

22. The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 22 of the
Amended Complaint.

23.  The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 23 of the
Amended Complaint.

24,  The WKYC Defendants deny making the publications attributed to them by
Plaintiffs and therefore deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 24 of the Amended
Complaint.

25.  The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 25 of the
Amended Complaint.

26. The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 26 of the
Amended Complaint.

27. The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 27 of the
Amended Complaint.

28,  The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 28 of the
Amended Complaint.

29. The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 29 of the

Amended Complaint,



COUNT TWO
FALSE LIGHT INVASION OF PRIVACY

30. The WKYC Defendants hereby incorporate the foregoing responses to the
allegations set forth in Plaintiffs’ Amended Complaint.

31.  The allegations set forth in Paragraph 31 of the Amended Complaint call for a
legal conclusion and require no response from the WKYC Defendants.

32. The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 32 of the
Amended Complaint.

33,  The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 33 of the
Amended Complaint.

34.  The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 34 of the
Amended Complaint.

35. The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 35 of the
Amended Complaint.

36. The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 36 of the
Amended Complaint.

COUNT THREE
TORTIOUS INTERFERENCE WITH RIGHT TO SEEK PUBLIC OFFICE

37. The WKYC Defendants hereby incorporate the foregoing responses to the
allegations set forth in Plaintiffs’ Amended Complaint.

38. The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 38 of the
Amended Complaint.

39.  The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 39 of the

Amended Complaint.



40, The WKYC Defendants deny the allegations set forth in Paragraph 40 of the
Amended Complaint.

SECOND DEFENSE

41.  Plaintiffs have failed to state a claim upon which relief can be granted.

42, U.S. Wings lacks standing to assert the claims set out in the Amended Complaint.

43, True and accurate transcriptions of the four investigative stories underlying
Plaintiffs’ tlaims are attached hereto in chronological order, as Exhibits 1-4.

44.  In compiling information for the stories, the WKYC Defendants referred to
Hack’s autobiography, The Life of a Warrior: Welcome Home!, which Hack gave to the WKYC
Defendants before the investigative stories aired. A true and accurate copy of Hack’s
autobiography is attached hereto as Exhibit 5.

45. In compiling information for the stories, the WKYC Defendants obtained an
official copy of Hack’s military record from the U.S. Government’s National Personnel Records
Center. A true and accurate copy of Hack’s military record is attached hereto as Exhibit 6.

46.  In compiling information for the stories, the WKYC Defendants considered
statements made by Hack in the media and on the internet, like the full page advertisement taken
out by Hack in the Hudson Hub Times newspaper, dated November 30, 2011, a true and accurate
copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 7.

47.  The WKYC Defendants intend to rely upon and assert all defenses that may
become known or available during the course of discovery in this proceeding and hereby reserve
the right to amend this Answer and these Affirmative Defenses to assert any and all such
defenses.

WHEREFORE, having fully answered Plaintiffs’ Amended Complaint, Defendants

WKYC TV, Inc. and Eric Mansfield ask this Court to: 1) deny Plaintiffs’ damages; 2) dismiss



the WKYC Defendants from this lawsuit, with prejudice; and 3) award them reasonable costs,
including attorneys’ fees, incurred in defending against Plaintiffs’ claims.

Respectfully submitted,

n A. Frietfnan (006000T)
steven.friedman(@ssd.com
Saber W. VanDetta (0075098)
saber.vandetia(@ssd.com
SQUIRE, SANDERS & DEMPSEY (US) L.L.P.
4900 Key Tower
127 Public Square
Cleveland, OH 44114-1304
(216) 479-8500
(216) 479-8780 (facsimile}

Attorneys for Defendants
Eric Mansfield and WKYC TV, Inc.



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

A true and accurate copy of the foregoing Eric Mansfield’s and WKYC TV, Inc.’s
Answer to Amended Complaint was served this 16th day of December, 2011, via regular U.S.

mail upon the following:

Dean S. Hoover, Esq. Stephen W. Funk

Hudson Station, Suite 3 Roetzel & Andress, LPA

5 Atterbury Boulevard 222 South Main Street

Hudson, Ohio 44236 Akron, OH 44308

Attorney for Plaintiff Attorney for Defendant William A. Currin

One of the Attorneys for Defendants,
Eric Mansfield and WKYC TV, Inc.



Story #1, Run 10/13/11

Ms. Robinson: Good evening. He says it’s all true, but others claim he’s stretching the truth.
Channel 3’s Eric Mansfield joins me now from the Akron Bureau with all the details. Eric, what
is this about?

Mr. Mansfield: Well, good evening, Ramona. These pictures and this autobiography, people in
Hudson will recognize it, it’s David Hack, a local Vietnam era soldier who ran on the GOP
nomination for the Mayor’s office, but some local veterans and some online watchdog groups are
taking issue with [Hack’s] war stories and say they just don’t add up.

A few months ago, 71-year old David Hack was honored when Congressman Steve LaTourette
presented him with a Purple Heart for the wounds he sustained as a soldier in Vietnam. But now
serious questions about Hack’s military service are arising.

Hack runs a successful military clothing business, U.S. Wings, in Hudson.
Mr. Hack video excerpt: 1'm a life member of the Texas Rangers.

Mr. Mansfield: He is quite open about being a soldier, with many photos and awards on his
walls. He’s even written a book about his life story, telling me that he is helping other Vietnam
veterans.

Mr. Hack video excerpt: Unless a person’s been there, they don’t understand, and I’ve been
there.

Mr. Mansfield: Troops online say Hack’s instead been helping himself. [They think that]
especially the claims about serving in the Army’s elite Rangers are a stretch.

In his book Hack claims that he was a raw recruit training to be a Special Forces soldier and
calling Ranger training “grueling.” In online writings he claims he was proud to wear the
Rangers’ black beret, but, in fact, Hack tells Channel 3 he was never accepted to Ranger school.
But rather acted in a support role for Ranger operations.

Mr. Hack video excerpt: 1 trained Rangers for two years. 1did not graduate from Ranger school,
nor have [ ever professed that | graduated from Ranger school.

Mr. Mansfield: But others allude that he did. One national watchdog group that outs phony
veterans is now beginning its own investigation requesting his military records. Others online
take issue not just for what Hack’s written in his books but with some of his pictures and other
stories, saying the date, time, places don’t add up.

Hack though says he’s trying to set the record straight on his website. He says it’s all true and he
can back it all up. He says it’s politically motivated but online some troops have taken action
against him, or should 1 say they’re upset with him and this goes back as far as 2003. Channel 3
has requested his records, and as soon as we get them we’ll let you know what we find.
Reporting in Akron, Eric Mansfield, Channel 3 News.

CLEVELAND/1259897.2




Story #2, run 10/14/11

Ms. Robinson: It’s a story we first told you about last night at 6:00, a candidate for mayor under
fire by those who think he’s stretching the truth about his military service. Eric Mansfield joins
me now from our Akron Bureau with the follow up, Eric. '

Mr. Mansfield: Yeah, Ramona. David Hack is a candidate for Mayor of Hudson, so not unusual
that he would call a press conference. But today’s press conference was put out that he was
going to refute our story from yesterday which others question his military service. We went
hoping to get more answers, but it was over before it began.

Mr. Hack video excerpt: And this is one of the Coast Guard jackets.

Mr. Mansfield: On Thursday, David Hack was proud to show our cameras all over his U.S.
Wings military clothing warehouse in Hudson. But Friday, afier he challenged our story with a
press conference, we went there to hear what he had to say.

Unidentified woman video excerpt: Sarge isn’t here, but here’s a number to call.

Mr. Mansfield video excerpt: No sign of Hack for his own press conference. He said there is a
press conference here at 1:007

Unidentified woman video excerpt: 1don’t know anything about that.

Mr. Mansfield: But, tonight, others are talking about Hack, raising questions about whether this
wounded Vietnam Veteran who received the Purple Heart just a few months ago embellished his
military service, Specifically, whether he presented himself as a member of the U.S. Rangers, an
arm of America’s elite special forces.

Mr. Hack video excerpt: [ trained Rangers for two years. [ did not graduate from Ranger school,
nor have | ever professed that 1 graduated from Ranger school.

Mr. Mansfield: But this statement by Hack goes directly against what we’ve found that he has
written online. On a military awards website, he signed “David Hack, retired U.S. Army
Ranger.” On a Navy website [he signed] “Best regards, Sgt. Hack, retired U.S. Army Ranger,”
even [including] a class number, 1686. And on a former page of his own company website,
writing that he “went into the U.S. Army Rangers, becoming a sergeant.

We called the home of the Rangers, Fort Benning, and sent them links to ask them about the
online information. After researching his service, an Army spokesperson writes: “the Rangers
have no record of anyone named Hack attending school in the 1960’s, and also, he could not
have served with a Ranger battalion during Vietnam as there were only Ranger companies. He
can’t call himself a Ranger if he never served with one of the Ranger companies or completed
Ranger training.”

Doug Cabarle video excerpt: Before he’s elected, | think the Hudson residents should know
what he is really about.

Mr. Mansfield: Doug Cabarle, a Navy veteran living in Hudson, says he never met Hack but
became suspicious when he read his campaign literature and heard about his military service.

CLEVELAND/1259904.2 a EXHIBIT
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Mr. Cabarle: I’m not denying [Hack’s] a veteran and, in fact, I just wish that he would have just
been proud of the service that he did without embellishing every other aspect of his life.

Mr. Mansfield: Now, on his website, Hack claims he can still back-up all these military
allegations.

He even links to this military DD 214, but it really only shows when he entered and exited the
service. None of the information about schools he attended or assignment that he had. That’s
the record that we need to validate all of this. He’s called a new press conference for Monday,
hopefully we’ll get more than a post-it note and a goodbye. Hopefully we’ll get some answers.
Reporting live in Akron, Eric Mansfield, Channel 3.

CLEVELAND/1259904.2



Story #3, run 10/18/11

Ms. Robinson: Tough questions, with few answers today as David Hack refuses to offer any
proof about claims he made about his military service. Channel 3 Akron Bureau Chief, Eric
Mansfield broke this story last week and joins us live with today’s developments. Eric?

Mr. Mansfield: Yeah, all along, David Hack remains a mayoral candidate in Hudson, but you
would not have known by this makeshift press conference today. Rather than take charge and
explain why he’s gone online and in photos claiming to be an elite Army Ranger when he never
graduated from the school, he instead stood silent.

Mr. Hack video excerpt: Unless a person’s been there, they don’t understand, and 1've been
there.

Mr. Mansfield: Last week, David Hack admitted that he was never an actual U.S. Army Ranger.

Mr. Hack video excerpt: 1 trained Rangers for two years, | did not graduate from Ranger school,
nor have I ever professed that I graduated from Ranger school.

Mr. Mansfield: But as our report showed, Hack did refer to himself as a retired Ranger online
and in multiple writings. And now photos showing Hack in uniform wearing a Ranger beret he
didn’t earn, voters want Hack 1o explain the discrepancies. Yet, at his own press conference,
Hack said nothing,

Mr. Hack’s attorney video excerpt: His military career is what he says it is and it’s been
extremely painful for him to have to justify what he did 45 years ago.

Mr. Mansfield: Hack’s attorney made legal threats but did nothing to validate Hack’s stories.

Mr. Mansfield video excerpt: C’mon, Sarge, when are you going to come clean about your
military service? If you’re running for office, shouldn’t you come clean?

Mr. Mansfield: In a previous interview, Hack pointed to his website and his DD 214, the single
document that validates any service member’s military career. But the form on Hack’s political
website shows only an entrance and exit date in the military and references to a Ranger student
battalion, but all of the key details of medals, schools completed and service are missing and
neither Hack nor his attorney have any plans to provide them.

Mr. Manstield video excerpt: How do you have nothing to say? If you weren’t a Ranger, why
do you continue to tell people that you are?

Mr. Hack’s attorney video excerpt: Okay, it’s time to go.

Mr. Mansfield: Well, that picture of Hack in uniform was from his company’s website, it has
since been removed. I can tell you that Hack was a Vietnam veteran, he did go as a soldier and
he was wounded. Again, though not a Ranger. A spokesman for the Army Ranger Association
has said that service in a support role in a Ranger training battalion does not entitle a soldier to
call themselves a Ranger, or to wear the beret or any other Ranger tabs.

CLEVELAND/1259914.2




Meanwhile, Hack’s attorney has now filed a lawsuit, naming Channel 3, Hudson Mayor Bill
Currin and John Does 1-25 as defendants. Our attorneys are looking it over. Reporting live in
Akron, Eric Mansfield, Channel 3 News.

CLEVELANDYi259914.2



Story #4, run 10/31/11

Ms. Robinson: We begin tonight with a Channel 3 exclusive investigation about a candidate for
Akron mayor masquerading as someone he’s not. Channel 3°s Eric Mansfield joins me live with
more on David Hack’s military record. Eric?

Mr. Mansfield: Well, good evening Ramona. Actually, David Hack is running to be mayor of
Hudson. These are the records we have been after. Public release of documents about what
David Hack did during his time in the military. We see a lot of what he did do in the military but
it also paints some contradictions as to what he claimed in his autobiography, as to medals he
was wearing on his uniform, which is what the records say. And, also, even though he has called
himself, “Sergeant Hack™ all these years, these records say he’s not a sergeant.

These documents, obtained from the National Personnel Records Center in St. Louis, Missouri,
show Hack’s enlistment dates. Mr. Hack served four years in the Coast Guard, nine in the Army.
But it’s the awards and service stories this Hudson businessman has claimed in [his
autobiography] and displayed in photos that now come into question.

For starters, the documents say that Hack’s rank is “SPC” or *“Specialist,” which contradicts
multiple photos showing Hack wearing different levels of sergeant stripes and claims he has been
promoted all the way to “SFC,” or “Sergeant First Class,” a full three ranks higher than
Specialist.

As for Hack’s medals, the military says Hack won one Purple Heart for being wounded in
Vietnam, a medal Hack received in June in a special presentation from Congressman Steve
LaTourette. His office says Hack asked for the ceremony, claiming he had never received the
medal. Although a closer look at this photo, from the 1970°s, shows Hack not only wearing a
Purple Heart but also a device indicating he had earned two. Again, the military record says one.

Military records also list a log of Hack’s duty assignments, showing a 19-month stint with a
Ranger student battalion, in a support role as a Senior Harbor crewman. But Hack does claim in
his book that he survived bloody battles as part of an elite Ranger unit in Vietnam. And as we
found, repeatedly calling himself a “retired Ranger” online. Hack also presents himself as a
Ranger in photos. In one, wearing the beret, in another posing with awards, including a Ranger
tab. The military says both items are reserved for soldiers who actually graduated from elite
Ranger school.

So what did Hack do in Vietnam? The military records show he spent six months as a career
counselor with the First Admin. Company. Then, after he was wounded, sent back to the United
States where he finished his career as a recruiter,

Now, 1 called David Hack this afternoon to try to get some answers as to the military record and
the discrepancies there. He says he would have no comment under advice from his attorney.
But veterans have been talking about this for some time online, many of whom have also
requested these records and they’ve been picking them apart quite a bit. What do you think
about the records, we’ve put them, in their entirety, on our website at wkyc.com. Reporting live
in our Akron Bureau, Eric Mansfield, Channel 3 News.

Ms. Robinson: Eric, Hack made a recent appearance at a candidate’s forum were we able to
learn anything more about him?

CLEVELAND/1259919.2




Mr. Mansfield: He wouldn’t discuss his military record but he was pressed hard on claiming that
he has a Ph.D. He now says his Ph.D. is in life experience, not from a college. More to come,
Ramona.

Ms. Robinson: Eric, thank you for that.

CLEVELAND/1259919.2
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Dedication

This book is dedicated to my brother
Lloyd A. Hack,
who made the ultimate
sacrifice and showed me the light,
and to my wife, Lanij,
| who picked up the
pieces and made me whole.
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Copyright © 2005 by David D. Hack
All rights reserved.

Printed in the United States
by E. Hall Industries, Inc.

No part of this book may be used
or reproduced in any manner whatsoever
without written permission.
David D. Hack
561 E. Hines Hill Rd.
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Sergeant David Hack
Friday the 13th

estern civilization holds no death more

honorable than falling in combat as a
warrior. In ancient Greece, the soldier’s soul was
guaranteed passage into the Fields of Elysium in
the Underworld, where it spent eternity with the
heroes from myths such as Hercules, Achilles,
and Ulysses. In ancient Rome, the whole society
was built upon this creed, as the military might
of the Roman legions marched, fought, and died
throughout three continents to found the greatest
empire known to man, lasting over 1,000 years.
All over Europe, statues of war heroes such
as Wellington, Napoleon, and Bismarck line
the streets and fill public squares. Not only in
Washington, D.C., but in every major city and
small town alike, this ideal is immortalized for
the ages in monuments commemorating the fallen
soldiers from every American armed conflict.

When the 1st Infantry Division was attacked,
and Sergeant David Hack’s personnel carrier was
ambushed in the jungles of Vietnam during the
Tet offensive, there was no time to think of honor,
heroes, or lofty ideals about death. Deafening
explosions occurred all around, leaving men
cut in half and their body parts strewn about, as
the chilling screams of dying soldiers filled the

1



Life Of A Warrior

background. The North Vietnamese Army had
struck an American convoy heading to the front
lines in An Loc. The attack was unexpected,
well coordinated, and successful. The American
soldiers were unable to return fire, as one

~ personnel carrier after another exploded from
- direct mortar hits, and men were torn to pieces

by gunfire. Only Sergeant Hack was able to
return fire on the run, but he was outnumbered,
overwhelmed, and cut down by bullet wounds to
his arm, chest, and knee as he emptied his M-16
rifle.

Completely immobilized and out of
ammunition, Hack could do little more than watch
the Vietnamese step from the jungle to finish the
battle’s work. He bled profusely, as the enemy
ran bayonets through the skulls and throats of
wounded American soldiers. He simply waited
his turn to enter Death’s domain as the enemy’s
long bayonet pierced his throat and sinus cavity
as it was plunged through his mouth. He lost
consciousness and lay in the jungle with the dead
surrounding him for over one full day. It was
24 hours before he awoke to a reconnaissance
soldier’s voice saying, “I think we’ve got a live
one here.” Hack was being sized for a body bag
when he was discovered to be the only soldier
to survive the devastating ambush by the North
Vietnamese Army on that Friday the 13th, 1968
in South East Asia,




Sergeant David Hack

The real irony, though, lies in the fact that
had Hack been where his position originally
demanded at the side of his general, whose
person he was protecting, his death would have
been instant when the enemy’s rocket struck the
helicopter, killing General Ware. Keith Ware was
the only Two Star general to die in the Vietnam
conflict, and Hack would have died with him had
an officer not refused him permission to board
the helicopter and given him direct orders to be
on that fateful convoy en route to meet them in
An Loc. |

Hack’s chest and arm were scarred from
the bullets, his skull and mouth were lined
with metal, and his kneecap was completely
destroyed, leaving only muscle and sinew to hold
the leg together. He spent a year in recovery, all
the while arguing with doctors that he would
survive, despite not allowing a leg amputation.
The price of honor is very high, and according
to Hack, was paid by those who had no notions
of heroism, honorable creeds about death, or any
desire to be warriors, but rather just men who
proudly did their nation’s bidding, yet wanted to
go home. Hack made it home, but none of his
comrades from that battle did.




Life Of A Warrior

The Warrior

avid Hack had fought all his life. He fought

hunger and poverty in rural Kentucky. He
fought the fear of an abusive father, who beat
him and abandoned his family. He fought the
bullies who tormented him while growing up,
with only a dirt-floored sheep shack to call home.
He fought the anguish of a brother’s sacrifice for
his mistake. He fought seasickness as a member
of the U.S. Coast Guard. He fought to obtain a
Ph.D. in Military Science. He fought crooked
cops and their unique form of business extortion.
He fought the enemy in Vietnam. Now, he fought
for life and limb, literally. Doctors proclaimed he
would never walk again, but by finding strength
in faith, which according to Hack “...isn’t truly
faith until it’s all you have left to hang on to...”
he proved them wrong. David would not only
walk again, but he would also continue fighting.

Davidwasbornon April21, 1940in Louisville,
Kentucky. His father, Ellis Monroe Hack, and
mother, Viola French, both of Kentucky birth, had
three other sons: Lloyd, Lambert, and Hoppy.

P



Sergeant David Hack

Hack’s father, Ellis, was a carpenter who
worked building houses. He was also a
domineering man whose impatience led to child
abuse and eventual abandonment of his whole
family. It was a common occurrence for him to
return home late after a night of drinking, and
find a reason to beat David. He tormented him
to the point of bed-wetting, which provided
Ellis with yet another reason for using a coat
hanger to discipline David. This psychologically
affected Hack for years after Eilis Monroe left
his family. - '

When David was six years old, Ellis drove
Viola ‘and the boys to a friend of the family’s
under the false pretext of a weekend visit. After
disembarking the old sedan, Viola and her sons
were helpless to do anything but watch as Fllis
told his family to wait for him while he drove
away to get cigarettes. David Hack never saw his
father again, until he joined his brothers at the
man’s deathbed. |




Sergeant David Hack

Hack’s father, Ellis, was a carpenter who
worked building houses. He was also a
domineering man whose impatience led to child
abuse and ‘eventual abandonment of his whole
family. It was a common occurrence for him to
return home late after a night of drinking, and
find a reason to beat David. He tormented him
to the point of bed-wetting, which provided
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Life Of A War;ior

Ellis’s friend, Jim, had nothing to offer the
abandoned Viola and her sons in 1940’s rural
Kentucky, except an empty shack with a dirt
floor that had housed sheep. It was a one-room,
wooden shed with absolutely nothing but a
door. Here Viola struggled, like a peasant in the
harshest conditions of Medieval Europe, to raise
her sons properly. Unskilled and uneducated, she
worked in a factory to provide food, sent her boys
to school every day, and loved them as much as
any mother could.

Hack’s memories from the four years in
the shack were not their living quarter’s harsh
conditions, as much as the cruel kids in Sunfish,
who taunted him on a regular basis about his
home. He was constantly harassed, bullied, and
beaten for his position in poverty and his bed-
wetting. It was his older brother, Lloyd, who
armed Hack with a can opener and the self-
determination not to let anyone take advantage
- of him. He explained to David that if one guy
can get away with it, “...you’ll have the whole
town kicking the mess out of you.” Hack had
learned one of his most important lessons in
life; a man must stand up for himself, or he will
have even more trouble. Until then, Hack had
been taking the harassment, like he had taken his

father’s abuse - with stoic firmness, not shedding

a tear. Now he knew better. “There’s only one
thing worse than learning from experience; not
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learning from experience.” Hack learned a lot of
life’s lessons while living in that shack, but none
more important than those he would learn later
from a man named Ivan Shively.

Ivan Shively was a short, rotund, bald man
who was about “as cute as a toothless rat,” but
he fell in love with Viola French and married
her. He took Viola and her family from the harsh
degradation of the sheep shack to a proper home
in Louisville. He worked hard to maintain a good
life for his new family, and although he was not
the boys’ biological father, he taught them that
there was more to being a dad than biology. He
spent therest ofhis life dedicated toraising Viola’s
sons, Joving them as though they were his own.
And Viola, who had known so little of happiness,
spent her life by Ivan’s side with,a smile on her
face. The whole family had learned a lesson: The
heart of a saint can come in many forms. Ivan
had been their savior in many respects, and the
family respected and loved him for it.

Growing up in downtown Louisville,
Kentucky was often not any easier than growing
up in Sunfish. Small guys tend to get picked
on, so. David survived the next seven years in
Louisville by fending off bullies with a sharp
bottle opener, or ducking into the Police Athletic
League Club to “learn a punch” and watch a
young boxer named Cassius Clay spar.
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l[earning from experience.” Hack learned a lot of
life’s lessons while living in that shack, but none
more important than those he would learn later
from a man named Ivan Shively. .

Ivan Shively was a short, rotund, bald man
who was about “as cute as a toothless rat,” but
he fell in love with Viola French and married
her. He took Viola and her family from the harsh
degradation of the sheep shack to a proper home
in Louisville. He worked hard to maintain a good
life for his new family, and although he was not
the boys’ biological father, he taught them that
there was more to being a dad than biology. He
spentthe rest ofhis life dedicated toraising Viola’s
sons, loving them as though they were his own.
And Viola, who had known so little of happiness,
spent her life by Ivan’s side with a smile on her
face. The whole family had learned a lesson: The
heart of a saint can come in many forms. Ivan
had been their savior in many respects, and the
family respected and loved him for it.

Growing up in downtown Louisville,
Kentucky was often not any easier than growing
up in Sunfish. Small guys tend to get picked
on, so David survived the next seven years in
Louisville by fending off bullies with a sharp
bottle opener, or ducking into the Police Athletic
League Club to “learn a punch” and watch a
young boxer named Cassius Clay spar.
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Hack grew to be a young man in Louisville,
and Ivan continued to provide for him as a
teenager also. He lent David his old car to go on
a date one evening. The car had tires so bald that
it was a wonder they held air. Once the sun had
gone down, Hack set out on his first business
venture - to obtain new tires for Ivan’s old car.
Unfortunately, the venture was larceny, and a
policeman obtained a great deal of satisfaction
from watching him commit the crime, even
though he could have stopped him, and perhaps
set the young man on a different agenda for the
evening. David was arrested and held in custody
at the police station. David called his older
brother, Lloyd, who came to see him before
anyone else knew about the crime. In order to
save David, Lloyd made an agreement with the
police to confess to a string of burglaries around
Louisville, even though he had .not committed
them. Lloyd swore his brother to secrecy for
their mother’s sake and took the stiffest penalty
that the hanging judge could grant him. He
only asked David to promise to go on and make
something of himself. This sacrifice by Lloyd
created anguish in David that was the driving
force behind him to succeed in doing good
deeds. David regretted his actions that night for
the rest of his life and spent years trying to make
up for it with hard work in one of the world’s
most dangerous professions, the armed service.
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With no money or post secondary education,
David Hack had few options in Kentucky, so
leaving the state was imperative. ' In 1957, he
joined the United States Coast Guard.

Hack’s main concern was getting an education
while serving, but between the antics of Coast
Guard sailors and the nauseating sea, he worked
hard just to maintain his daily routine. If he
was not trying to ignore sailors’ jabs for his
lack of desire to imbibe beer, he was running to
the deck’s edge to vomit from seasickness. He
spent his spare time reading and studying, as his
comrades drank heavily and poked fun at him for
his abstinence. In his usual fashion, Hack’s stoic
temperament made him endure, never forgetting
the sacrifice Lloyd had made, or the promise he
had vowed. Yet, it wasn’t until his ship’s docking -
at Wake Island, that the full meaning of sacrifice
became tangible to Hack. "

Wake Island was a United States Marine
Corps outpost at the time of the Japanese attack
on Pearl Harbor in 1941. The Imperial Japanese
Navy was ordered to take control of the island
after Pearl Harbor’s bombing on December 7th.
The Americans' on Wake Island had no idea of
just how large the contingent of naval power
was that was poised to attack them. There was
no radar, and the sound of the incessant waves
crashing against the small atol] hindered knowing
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the enemy’s strength by hearing their ships and
planes.

For 15 days, from December 8th tothe 23rd, the
small, poorly equipped, and grossly outnumbered
American force held off the Japanese navy. They
sank two destroyers and damaged two cruisers,
a transport ship, and two other destroyers. They
shot down 21 enemy aircraft and damaged a
total of 51 planes. The Americans killed circa
1000 Japanese. The United States’ military did
not reinforce Wake Island during its valiant
resistance, but the American commanders
refused surrender until the last of the U.S. fighter
planes had been shot down. The commanders,
fighter pilots, Marines, and civilians who fought,
died, and were taken prisoner at Wake Island,
exemplified the fighting spirit of America’s will
to remain free, regardless of the odds.

After disembarking from his ship, the young
Coast Guard sailor David Hack found himself
on Wake Island among the skeletal remains of
those who had died there. The Japanese who had
occupied the island for the length of the war had
never buried the American dead, and America

never used it again as a major outpost. So, while

on Wake Island, Hack took the time to put some
of America’s bravest men and women into their
final resting place. Single-handedly he dug the
graves and buried the remains of many who
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fought in America’s first “Alamo” of the Second
World War. This was surely one of America’s
most solemn funerals for its war dead. Unknown
to Hack at the time, this was a pivotal point in
his life. He began a relationship of love and
respect for those who had fought and died for

- their country, his country. This respect would

permeate his life for the rest of his days.
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The Hilltop

nce out of the Coast Guard, Hack invested

his money in a legitimate business. A friend
had advised him to buy The Hilltop Nightclub
in Louisville, Kentucky, and he took his advice.
His crowded nightclub was very popular and
brought in enough money to attract the attention
of law officials. Two policemen came to Hack’s
business demanding money, and explained to him
that this was simply the way people were allowed
to stay open in their county. It was government-
sanctioned extortion.

Hack was unyielding and went on to report
the two officers to their superiors. This made
him very unpopular with both the policemen and
their bosses. Any competent law official usually
knows when his men are receiving bribes. This
made Hack a “marked man” in certain circles of
the county’s judicial system. In an attempt to be
an honest man refusing to give into extortion,
David Hack had put himself into the “cross hairs”
of the local law enforcement’s riflescope.

Now, the corrupt police needed only to wait
for Hack to make a mistake, as there is often
trouble in a popular establishment where liquor
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is served. One evening, a fight broke out at The
Hilltop Nightclub, in which numerous people
were involved. The bartender was overwhelmed
and thought that exhibiting a shotgun would
quiet the crowd before someone got killed.
Unfortunately, that was not what happened. As
the bartender came around the bar, he slipped
on spilled beer, fell to the ground with shotgun
in hand, and wounded a customer with the
accidental gun blast.

The vultures moved in, and the law officials
had Hack in an uncompromising position. With

*a judge in their corner and allegedly plenty of

ways to put him behind bars for a very long time,
they threatened him with liability. In reality, the
police really did not care whether Hack went to
jail or not, but wanted revenge for his unyielding
behavior toward their earlier demands. They
wanted to humiliate him by taking his business.
So, in line with their usual way of “enforcing the
law,” the police cut a deal with Hack to let him
walk. Hack had only to sign over his nightclub to
the authorities, because according to them, there
was nothing else for him to do if he did not want
to be charged, tried, and convicted of a crime.
He signed the nightclub over to the authorities,
but this proved to be a very bad investment for
them.
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To this day, the location of the club remains
an empty lot as a result of a fire that broke out
shortly after the authorities obtained the property
and released Hack. The day after the fire, Hack
left town to become a U.S. Army Ranger with
the 1st Infantry Division - The Big Red One. No
one has ever been charged in the arson of The
Hilltop Nightclub in Louisville, Kentucky.
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LV,

The Rangers

gain, David Hack owned nothing. His

savings from the Coast Guard lie in the
ashes of The Hilltop Nightclub. He had no home
but the military, and he had not yet completed his
degree. In many respects, he had hit rock bottom,
but it did not stop him from climbing back up. He
enlisted in the U.S. Army Rangers on April Fool’s
Day, April 1, 1964. His knowledge of small boats
. from his service in the Coast Guard from 1957 to
1961 was exactly what the Rangers desperately
needed. He was first sent to Fort Benning,
Georgia and then to Eglin AFB, Florida where the
Army conducted their jungle training, small boat
training, and river and beach training. He worked
hard as a raw recruit, training to be a Special
Forces soldier in the Rangers and completing his
Ph.D. in Military Science. The Rangers’ fraining
is grueling, and spending every other waking
moment studying for a Ph.D. helped make it just
a little harder. Tn spite of his perseverance and
fortitude, he. seemed to get stuck at one point
and did not go through the entire Ranger training
as he had expected. Every month he would ask
his first Sgt. when he would finish the rest of his
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training and was given the answer “soon”. Two
years had past, and he was still asking the same
question. He decided to write a letter to then
President of the United States, LBJ. In Dave’s
words, “Bad news...never, and I mean NEVER
write to the President of the United States. I was
sent to Newfoundland for 6 months and never
fully completed Ranger Training. I should have
learned never to buck the Brass, but I always
did.” Eventually, Hack obtained the rank of
Sergeant in the U.S. Army and was stationed at
Fort Benning, Georgia as an instructor. Hack was
a true Maverick then and to this day. He still is a
Maverick “bucking the Brass”.

Sergeant Hack would come to Ivan Shively’s
home and visit his mother when on leave.
While visiting Viola and Ivan, fate changed
Hack’s life again. When he was deer hunting
in the Kentucky hill country, a bobcat attacked
Hack and tore at him until he became a ragged
spectacle. In good humor, Ivan Shively found
Hack’s tattered appearance a cause for friendly
ridicule and laughter. According to Ivan, The
U.S. Army Ranger, Sergeant David Hack of the
1st Infantry, “got whooped by a little old pussy
cat.” His ribbing of David sent Viola into tears
of laughter as well. Unfortunately, after this day,
Ivan would laugh no more. He succumbed to a
heart attack while at home with his wife, Viola,
and adopted David at that moment.

16




Sergeant David Hack

Ivan’s death and Viola’s grief prompted
Sergeant Hack to call his superiors and request an
extension of his leave. Luckily, he was reassigned
to the Nichols Army Hospital in" Louisville,
where he administered the army exam to new
recruits brought in by the draft. One young recruit
to whom he administered the exam was his old
friend from the Louisville Police Athletic League
Club, Cassius Clay, now known as Muhammad
Ali. Ali’s boxing talents far exceeded his ability
on written exams. While talking to Ali’s trainer,
Joe Martin, Hack commented that both Ali and
Martin could have saved themselves a lot of
time and trouble fighting Ali’s draft by simply
having him take the test first. Ali failed the exam
miserably.

There was one particular incident that Hack
experiencedathisjobasarecruittestadministrator
that set him on yet another path, the one to the
Vietnam War. One day, while going through the
monotony of a day in the life of an administrator,
Hack was approached by a severely depressed
and distraught man, who simply walked into
the office demanding his right to be drafted.
He wanted to go to Vietnam. His brother had
been killed in the war, and he wanted to fight.
He asked Hack, “Have you been there?” Army
Ranger Sergeant David Hack, one of the most
highly qualified and rigorously trained soldiers
of the armed services could only say, “No.”
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This incident affected Hack tremendously.
He realized that the war was not very popular
anywhere in the world. He realized that millions
of Americans in the United States hated the
draft. He realized that going to war, especially
this particular war as an Army Ranger, almost
certainly meant one’s death or dismemberment.
Yet, the fact that he helped send numerous boys
to Vietnam, while he stayed home, opposed his
own moral code. He was trained to be a soldier, a
very special soldier. He was one of an elite group
of highly trained warriors, whose mission was to -
fight under the most difficult situations. Yet, he
stayed home, thanks to a superior’s reassignment
of him. It was just the “luck of the draw,” and
most sane men would have been thankful, down-
on-their-knees, in-the-church-thankful. But when
a man who knew nOthing about the service, war,
or Vietnam, voluntarily offered up his life, just as
his younger brother had done before him, Hack
could sit still no longer.

Even though he was now a married man with a
child, the next day he went to his Sergeant Major
and demanded that he be sent to a fighting unit
in Vietnam, At first, the Sergeant Major was sure
Hack had lost his mind. “Yes, I think you have
lost your mind, Sergeant. You should be thanking
the Lord for your good fortune, Sergeant. Your
safe little desk job is the envy of every GI in the
whole damn Army. I don’t know what vacation
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guide you subscribe to, but Vietnam is a hellhole.
Has the reality of war just passed you by? Do
you not realize most of the boys we send over
there come back in boxes?” He then gave Hack
a direct order to leave his office. But at the risk
of insubordination, Hack was persistent, “I have
been here six months and have sent a lot of those
men to Nam. After yesterday, | know more than
ever what you mean.” The Sergeant Major then
understood perfectly. He had been there when
the distraught man had approached Hack due to
his brother’s death. He granted Hack his request,
and 1n less than a month, Ranger Hack was very
much in harm’s way.
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V.

“Welcome
tO'\Hell, Boys!”

ergeant Hack’s deployment to war-torn

Vietnam played out like a scene from a
Hollywood action adventure film. Under heavy
artillery attack at night, the Rangers’ transport
plane was unable to land on the airstrip, but the
Rangers would deploy. At the Jump Master’s
command, the five-member special teams unit
exited the plane out the rear hatch that scraped
the runway as the plane lumbered along at thirty-
six knots. Each Ranger tucked himself into a ball
and rolled out onto the airfield over the sparks,
which were sent up by the metal hatch door
dragging on the concrete pavement.

Once on the ground, the Jump Master got
the unit together, back-to-back in a tight group
to face any attacks from the surrounding jungle.
This was how Hack spent his first hours in
Vietnam; awaiting an unseen enemy to spring
from the jungle, whose numbers could have
surely overwhelmed the small Rangers’ unit.

As the night passed and dawn approached, the
clamor of battle receded into a distant echo, and
it seemed that everyone would be alive at first
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light. But a war zone is never safe, and to let one’s
guard down is suicide. Out of modesty, a Ranger
left the group to urinate, and before the Jump
Master could reprimand him, modesty was his
death. The unseen enemy’s machete cut through
the man’s neck so quickly and completely, that
only one stroke was needed to remove the head.
Sergeant Hack and the others, still squatting,
looked on in frozen horror as the man’s head
actually hit the ground before his erect body fell,
so clean was the decapitation. The Jump Master
did not move, nor did he order any one to move.
He simply whispered, “Welcome to Hell, boys.”

The next day, Sergeant Hack and his unit
were transported by helicopter to Lai Khe, a
battle-torn multinational army base. Sergeant
Hack was replacing Sergeant Jack Biddix, who
gave Hack his first lesson on how to stay alive in
Vietnam. “Sleep in the tent during the day, but
under the rubber tree at night; their thick roots
stop the bullets. Be the only one to feed Rebel,
the watchdog, and watch him closely, because
he may be the only reason you get out of here
alive.” -

Rebel, the German Shepherd-looking mutt at
Lai Khe, did save Hack’s life and the lives of
many others as well. The keen hearing dog would
send soldiers runningJ for cover by jumping

|

21




Life Of A Warrior

into a foxhole first, because he could hear the
mortar shell coming in long before anyone else.
Regardless of what anyone was doing at the time,
if Rebel moved for cover, it meant incoming
mortar, and everyone else knew to follow suit.

“Rebel”

During his time at Lai Khe, Hack led numerous
reconnaissance missions. He fought with men
who killed and were killed. He survived close
brushes with death, while men right beside
him died. He was wounded by shrapnel, but
remained in Lai Khe to heal. Once healed, he
was transferred to take the place of Sergeant Van
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Zandt, who had been killed in action while being
General Keith Ware’s bodyguard.

Like Alexander the Great and Julius Caesar
before him, Keith Ware was a general who led
from the front lines. Being his bodyguard was an
extremely dangerous duty, and meant the widow
received extra compensation in case of his death
while protecting the general. At least Hack would
have something extra for his young family if he
did not return home, and Hack and Rebel would
have earned it, protecting both the general’s life
and his K-9 “King,” the full-blooded German
Shepherd. The enlisted man and his mutt proved
to be an effective aegis for the general and his
AKC purebred.

General Ware and Sergeant Hack. were
inseparable and became close military comrades.
“For the first time in this God-forsaken war, I
felt like I actually had a friend other than Rebel,”
Hack said. He and the general spent many nights
conversing about how they felt on various topics.
The general, like the U.S. Army itself, was
unfamiliar with the guerilla tactics of the enemy
and dissatisfied with the politicians’ handling
of the conflict.’ General Ware had commanded
armies in the Second World War and fought with
Audie Murphy, who saved his life. He expressed
to Hack the blatant difference of moods between
the conflicts. “Things used to be Simpler. You
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knew where the enemy was. You knew where the
front lines were. You knew what to expect and
how to defeat it. Now, it’s blurred, fuzzy,” the
general lamented. “All I need is one word, and [
could win this war in a matter of days...” General
Ware had, however, only “a matter of days.”
The Tet Offensive began, and American forces
were overrun on numerous fronts. Attacks were
made on the five major cities of South Vietnam,
thirty-six provincial capitals, sixty-four district
capitals, fifty villages, and three U.S. military
barracks. The Presidential Palace, the embassy in
Saigon, the city’s radio station and Ton Son Nhut
Air Base were overrun and occupied. It took the
American forces months to reclaim lost territory,
and the U.S. military engagement was escalated
afterwards. '

Arocket-propelled grenade destroyed General
Ware’s helicopter while in flight to what was
thought to be the front lines in An Loc. In reality,
there were no front lines. The country of South
Vietnam was being overrun by 100,000 North
Vietnamese, and Hack fared little better than the
general. He was the only survivor of the ambush
on his company, and was debilitated with multiple
bullet, bayonet, and shrapnel wounds.

In a wheelchair and bandages, Hack returned
hometo only his wife, mother, and an Army officer
at the airport, who awarded him the Purple Heart
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medal. His homecoming was not much of an event
for the lone survivor of such a brutal battle, but
the Purple Heart medal, “...made the pain seem
less,” Hack later commented. During his year
in the army hospital, he fought off amputation
by well-meaning doctors, rehabilitated himself
to walk, and even made friends with soldiers
who had fought alongside Rebel, the German
Shepherd mutt, who had saved so. many men’s
lives in voiceless anonymity.
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The Hackmobile

fter a year in the hospital, Hack was

assigned to be a recruiter, and he became
the very best the military has ever had, before
or since. Located in Cuyahoga Falls, Ohio, a
suburb of Akron, Hack became more than just
the leading recruiter; his story became legend
behind a persona that became famous. He mused
once, “I became the poster child for hard core
military guys. The Army loved the fact that I
was missing parts of my body. It made me seem
tough, invincible.”

As a recruiter, in a time the military was
-extremely unpopular in the United States, Hack
thought up an original idea to raise the enlistment
statistics. After a lot of phone calls to the Army’s
101st Airborne Division at Fort Campbell,
Kentucky, arguing with a Sergeant Major, and
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using the tenacity of a pit bull, Hack obtained an
old jeep. Its delivery was literally a clandestine,
- black ops undertaking of the lowest priority. It
was delivered to Hack in Colorado, Ohio by a
captain whose orders he told Hack, “I’'m not
supposed to ask any questions. I’'m only to give
you the jeep and not know anything about this.”

Regardless of the means, Hack was about to
make the military famous in the Midwest. At
his own expense, he had the jeep painted red,
white, and blue with stars and stripes. He had
a fluorescent “U.S. Army” printed on it. He put
red vinyl seats in it, sixteen-inch chrome wheels
all around, and a paratrooper’s logo on the back
window. The jeep was an eye-catching novelty
to grab the interest of young men who were
possible recruits, but it and its driver became
icons for military service. Hack drove it in
parades, to schools, fairs, drag races, sporting
events, and even people’s homes to recruit for the
military. Yet, the jeep did more than make kids
say “Wow!” As Hack commented years later, “It
broke down the communication barrier between
me and the young men. They wanted to see me,
and during the Vietnam War, not many young
men wanted to see an Army recruiter.” Hack had
won the heaits and minds of the youth for the
military, posing it as a challenge that would train
them to do something very well and give them
opportunities for an education.
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For two years, the Sergeant and his
“Hackmobile” not only drove around the
Midwest recruiting soldiers for the military,
but “Sarge” and his jeep became the impetus
behind a recruitment rate that rose drastically.
The stations in his area saw their enlistment rise
from 13 recruits in five months to 62 in the next
four months. Hack was invited to schools as a
speaker, featured in the Rolling Stone magazine,
and appeared on television talk shows. During
this time, he “was on television almost weekly.”
David Hack was an icon for the American armed
services, and that was during the height of the
anti-war campaign of the 1970’s.

After becoming so popular, Hack and his jeep
were seen on the news by the division commander
of the 101st Airborne Division at Fort Campbell,
Kentucky. The commander was truly impressed
and thought the jeep was a great 1dea. He liked the
idea so much that he wanted a promotional jeep
like it for the 101st Airborne recruitment offices,
and inquired why his division did not have one.
He was then informed that the jeep had actually
come from the Fort Campbell’s 101st Airborne
Division originally, having been commandeered
and made over by Sergeant Hack. With a great
lack of appreciation for the humorous irony of
the situation, the commander had “his” jeep
returned to Fort Campbell immediately.
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For three more years, the jeep toured Kentucky
and the surrounding area as a recruitment tool for
the 101st Airborne Division. It was retired from
service in 1975, and was almost lost to history.
It was about to be returned to military service
in its drab olive veneer, when the Fort Campbell
Museum curator, Paul Lawson, spotted it. He
was able to convince the U.S. Army that it was
something worth saving, and it was declared
historical property. It was displayed in the
museum for over a dozen years before Hack saw
it again, and the years of wear could be seen on
the paint, seat, top, tires, etc. The jeep needed to
be refurbished, and again Hack paid for it. He
even took the time to drive to Fort Campbell, pick
it up, bring it to Ohio, and have it refurbished.
Six months later, he returned it to the museum.

The loss of the jeep to the 101st Airborne
Division did not stop Hack from his recruitment
crusade. He later bought a used Corvette, painted
it red, white and blue, had the Uncle Sam logo
painted on the hood, and put brass Army uniform
buttons on the upholstery. The Corvette became
his new recruitment tool and, although not a
military vehicle, it worked well. He thought up,
paid for, and passed out 14,000 “Sergeant Hack
Wants You - For the U.S. Army” posters and T-
shirts, replacing Uncle Sam’s face with his own.
Again, his practical, but innovative approach to
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marketing was a success, and the recruitment
rates continued to rise. It was this type of business
logic and personal savvy, combined with Hack’s
own commitment to his ideals, that would
continue to serve him in other ventures later in
his life. The “warrior” in Hack was charging at
full force again, or as Hack put it proudly as a
seasoned veteran able to still serve, “I was back
in it again...”

As a recruiter, there was another story that
exemplifies Hack’s commitment to his ideals.
Hack’s friend, Ted Cole, was in Hack’s office one
day advocating the proposition that Hack should
run for a political office due to his popularity.
Then, while looking out the plate glass window
at the passing traffic, Hack noticed a man in a
stopped car staring at him. The:man looked at
Hack in the eye and insulted him both verbally
and physically, saying and gesturing with his
finger, “F--- you!” Haek paused his conversation
with Cole, calmly walked out to the man’s car,
pulled him from it and proceeded to beat him. He
then turned, walked back to his office, sat down,
and continued his conversation with Ted Cole.
The driver, who obviously only then realized the
full extent of his mistake for insulting a man who
almost gave his life for his country, drove away
and was not heard from again at the recruiter’s
office.
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Before retiring from the service on a medical
discharge in 1973, Sergeant David Hack was
promoted to an SFC E-7 rank. His military career
had spanned 16 years, beginning with the U.S.
Coast Guard in 1957. He completed four years
in the Coast Guard, and joined the U.S. Army
in 1964. He earned the Purple Heart in 1968
while fighting with the Big Red One 1st Infantry
Division in Lai Khe, Vietnam. From 1969-
1973, Hack won the title of the nation’s Number
One Recruiter, using his jeep and Corvette as
recruiting tools. The jeep, now enshrined in the
Pratt Museum in Fort Campbell, Kentucky, 1s the
only jeep enshrined in a U.S. Army base museum
with the exception of General George Patton’s
jeep at Fort Knox.
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The Contract.

fter retiring from the military, David

Hack went on to join the Hudson Police
Department and later became the Chief of
Police in Sebring, Ohio. He buried himself in his
work and became very good at arresting middle
management drug dealers, raiding drug houses,
helping make convictions stick for dealers, and
trying to save kids from addiction. His work
was so extensive that he was a serious threat
to the profits of the upper echelon dealers, and
his reputation was now catching the eye of the
syndicate in Ohio. '

The FBI notified him personally that
Albert Peron, a local mob boss, had issued an
assassination contract on his life. This was no
surprise to Hack, because he knew that he was
shutting down Peron’s drug houses. He asked
the FBI agents what they planned to do about the
contract, but they could hot do anything about it
until Peron had committed a crime. In essence,
an attempt on Hack’s life had to be made before
the FBI could do anything.
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- Hack took the situation into his own hands. He

drove to Peron’s home and knocked on the door.
He caught Mr. Peron by surprise and explained
in quite simple terms, “If you don’t try to kill
me, I won’t kill you. OK?” The mob boss could
only shake his head in agreement. Hack later
commented just how reasonable a mob boss can
be when caught off guard. He never saw Peron
again.

While still the Chief of Police, Hack gota phone
call at home from his brother, Lloyd. His father,
Ellis, was in the hospital dying of pneumonia.
He had been found in the pouring rain, soaked to
the bone, sick, and dying in a shack in Sun Fish,
Kentucky. Everyone thought he had made his way
to California and had become well off financially,
but no one knew the truth. He was blind, diseased,
and lying in a hospital bed when David entered.
After all of the years since Ellis had beaten,
neglected, and abandoned him and his family, he
asked David for. forgiveness. David told him only
that forgiveness for his sins was in the realm of
God. He then'alone confided in God to “give him
hell.”
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The Missing Years

David’s homecoming to an abusive father’s
funeral and a selfish wife’s infidelity pushed
him over the edge. “There’s nothing here for me
anymore,” he confided in her and left to the shrill
sound of her screaming demands for everything
he owned. He agreed to her demands for the
house, business ventures, cars, and accounts,
and signed everything over to his family before
leaving. “I wanted to be lost and never found
again,” he thought to himself as he left with only
the clothes he wore. The one thing he retained
from the marriage was his military uniform
and gear, nothing else. In a way, his military
accomplishments were the proof to Lloyd and
him that he had indeed kept his word to his
brother and made something of himself.

As a homeless Vietnam veteran, Hack made
a living in Fort Myers, Florida selling trinkets
on the beach. He owned nothing. His only
companion was the recurring nightmare of the
North Vietnamese soldier stepping over him to
run the bayonet through his throat.
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One night as he slept on the beach, Hack
was awakened by a policeman during such a
nightmare, and he unwittingly attacked the officer
thinking him to be an enemy soldier. Because of
this indignant behavior toward law enforcement,
Hack was not loved by the Fort Myers Beach
Security. To them, he was just another beach
bum in Florida. For Hack, there was no love lost
while avoiding them, and his evasive actions
coincidently led his life in another direction.

While selling his wares on the beach
boardwalk, Hack saw both a storm brewing
and the same officer he had pummeled coming
toward him. He decided to move on and found
sanctuary from both the weather and beach
security in a hair salon, where a young woman
named Lani worked. She had no other customers,
so it seemed to Hack the perfect time for a trim.
He asked Lani if she had a pair of garden shears
to cut through his thick mop and whiskers. Lani
was intrigued and told him to have a seat. This
was the beginning of a life long relationship
that began with Hack’s last few dollars and an
appointment with his new stylist, Lani. “That
sweet girl cut my hair for. a year. It was the one
appointment 1’d never be late for,” Hack later
reminisced. During this time, David and Lani
began seeing more and more of each other, often
doing little more than taking walks on the beach
and talking. They fell very much in love, and
after three years of dating, decided to marry.
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Lani was 20 yedrs David’s junior, but it was
obvious that she loved him very much, because
she so staunchly opposed her mother’s concern
about the age difference. Her mother was
infuriated about Lani wanting to marry a man
about whom she knew so little, although Lani
had known him three years. Her mother would
rant and rave, saying that he was just a bum who
wanted to live off of her income. Yet, in spite of
her mothér’s objections, Lani became Mrs. David
Hack. They lived in her apartment, and soon she
became the pregnant Mrs. David Hack.

Even then, Lani had no idea about his past, but
before long, the military found Sergeant David
Hack in spite of his seemingly total obscurity.
When Lani answered the phone, she looked at
David and said, “Some Jeb Bush wants to talk
to you?” Shortly after this phone call, Hack was
inducted into the President’s Military Advisory
Coalition. At this point, he had a lot of explaining
to do. Nevertheless, when Lani saw U.S. Army
Ranger Sergeant First Class David Hack in
his military dress in the White House shaking
President George Bush’s hand, she beamed with
a pride that exemplifies the military wife’s love
for her husband.

A couple of years later while living in Florida
with Lani and their daughter, Hack received
word that his brother, Lloyd, was in the hospital
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1in Phoenix, Arizona, dying of lung cancer, likely
caused by heavy smoking. When David entered
the hospital room, his brothers, Lambert and
Hoppy, were there. Lloyd was still coherent
and reminisced jokingly with David about Ivan,
the bobcat, and the use of a “church key”. Yet,
near the end, Lloyd addressed David on a more
serious note. He told him that he was very proud
of what David had accomplished, and that he
would gladly take the false conviction for him
again. Prior to his visit, David had spoken with
the Governor, and got him to agree to repeal
the conviction and grant Lloyd a full pardon.
“You’re now a free man,” David told him.

Finally, Lloyd made one last request of David.
He told him to stop smoking. He knew David
had a beautiful wife and daughter now, and that
he should stop for them. This was Lloyd’s only
request, to which David agreed, as he held his
dying brother in his arms and heard him speak
his last words, “It feels good to be free.”

Many people attended the funeral, but the
brothers’ mother, Viola Hack, was not able to
attend. She had acquired Alzheimer’s disease and
was unable to remember many things, even sadly,
her own sons. Her decline was but a few years
away as well, and before she passed on, the Hack
brothers lost their mother to her forgetfulness,
before her actual death. Viola Hack was her sons’
greatest loss.
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As David stood over Lloyd’s unfilled grave,
he remembered his promise to his brother to stop
smoking, and in a ceremonial gesture to honor
that vow, he crushed his last pack of cigarettes
and dropped them into Lloyd’s grave. David
Hack never smoked again.

1Q




Sergeant David Hack

9@

US Wings

fter his brother Lloyd’s funeral, David

returned to Lani and their daughter,
Brittany, in Florida and continued to sell trinkets
on the boardwalk in Fort Meyers. One day, out
of nowhere, his old friend from Ohio, Ted Cole,
stood on the boardwalk and asked him, “David
Hack? What the hell are you doing?” Hack did
not have an answer as Ted walked away shaking
his head and saying only, “Go home, Sarge. Go
home.”

Ted Cole’s unexpected visit made Hack think
about his present situation, and he took the long
way home to contemplate his life and his family’s
future. As he was strolling along the boardwalk,
still deep in thought, he saw a sign on a store
named “US Wings.” In the window was another
sign that said “Going Out Of Business.” Hack
went in to ask whether the owner wanted to sell
any of the jackets cheap, because he sold things
on the street. The owner found Hack humorous
and told him-he could buy the whole business,
including the stock, wholesale contacts, and
US Wings trademark for $500. Hack thought a
minute and simply asked whether he took credit

30




Life Of A Warrior

cards. The owner looked at Hack as though he
might be some kind of a mental patient who had
absentmindedly wandered into the store. “My
wife has a credit card,” he informed the store
owner.

That night David asked Lani how much credit
she had left on her card. The plane ticket to
Phoenix had taken about half of it, so there was
almost exactly $500.00 remaining. David got
a big smile on his face. The Hacks were going
into the flight jacket business. A few weeks later,
David, Lani, and Brittany were packed and ready
to leave Fort Myers, Florida for Ohio. David
placed the last item into the little U-Haul trailer
hitched to the car: the US Wings sign from his
newly purchased business. Meanwhile, Lani’s
mother, Judy, stood in their midst like a raving
mad woman, cursing the day David Hack was
born and swearing revenge for stealing her
daughter away from her. “You’ll regret this! I
swear, you’ll regret this!” The mother continued
to rage as the car pulled away.

As promised, his mother-in-law took her
revenge, and she did it in the most insidious
manner. When refused a V.A. loan to buy a little
house for his new family, Hack wanted to find
out why. He waited in the lobby all day until the
bank closed, and was finally able to talk to Mr.
Edwards, the loan officer, who told him that he
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had received a phone call from someone saying
that Hack was a military imposter, a communist,
and was under investigation. David realized
that Mr. Edwards had received this information
as a result of a bogus phone call by his mother-
in-law. The matter was straightened out, and
Mr. Edwards realized that he had known Hack
previously, and that he was a man of integrity.
He immediately granted Hack his loan.

Now, with a place to live, the Hack family went
to work on their new flight jacket business. Lani
worked tirelessly to recreate the US Wings logo
and began the advertising. David worked hard to

figure out how to do business on a new invention

called the “Internet” and make contacts with the
suppliers, distributors, and business people of
the flight jacket business. Together they traveled,
met people, went to exhibitions, flea markets,
~ fairs, etc., any place to sell their wares. At first
it was hard, very hard. Bankruptcy hovered over
them like an evil specter, David was diagnosed
with ailments related to Agent Orange exposure,
and Lani was pregnant again. So began the family
business.
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The Site

he flight jacket industry is an extremely

difficult business in which to gain footing
as a newcomer. The major manufacturers have
long and protected lineages, some of which have
been in business since before the Second World
War. The patterns for the jackets are corporate
secrets that are trademarked and insured for large
amounts of money. Many flight jackets are still
made in the United States, and some are of the
highest quality. Many of the companies have
long standing contracts with the military and
other government agencies, which are some of
the most highly prized business agreements of
any industry.

Nevertheless, David Hack, a man who knew
what it meant to have everything and to have
nothing, was undaunted and unstoppable. David
and Lani’s self-determination, confidence, and
a quality product spurred on US Wings. David
made contacts with manufacturers, distributors,
and the government. He collected patterns,
expanded the site’s offerings, and continually
updated the website.
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He offered a free pilot’s cap and scarf with
each jacket purchase. He worked tirelessly to
insure the satisfaction of every single customer,
even if they were not satisfied, which happened
seldom. The testimonials were put onto the site
and still increase yearly. He catered to the troops
stationed all over the world by offering them free
postage and handling, regardless of where they
may be living. US Wings mailed out beautiful
postcards that displayed various jackets such
as the A-2, B-3, or G-1, and created a beautiful
catalogue that every customer received.

US Wings, founded in 1986, became a
soaring success. Their website has proven to be
a founding landmark in “dotcom™ commerce,
eventually obtaining over a million hits,
i.e., visits, each month. It has been featured
in numerous magazines, business journals,
newsletters, television shows, and the Wall
Street Journal. It is one of the largest suppliers
of flight jackets and sells to more government
and business interests than most other suppliers
in the industry. It is among one of the twenty-
three Internet businesses appearing in Jaclyn
Easton’s book StrikingltRich.com: Profiles of 23
Incredibly Successful Websites You've Probably
Never Heard Of. The site recently received the
Ronald Reagan Presidential Business Award for
excellence, and Hack sends each President a new
jacket every election.
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The US Wings customer list reads like an
invitationroster for ared carpeteventandincludes
many U.S. military top brass, Hollywood movie
stars, political dignitaries, corporate CEO’s and
working class people the world over. Also found
on the list are more than a hundred different
corporations which use US Wings jackets as
incentives and rewards.

Their products have been used in films such
as The Tuskegee Airmen, and more recently Sky
Captain and the World of Tomorrow. Angelina
Jolie, who starred in Sky Captain and the World of
Tomorrow, to which Hack supplied the goggles,
was presented a flight jacket from US Wings on
The Ellen DeGeneres Show. Dick Rossi, the ace
fighter pilot of the American Volunteer Group,
better known as the Flying Tigers, recently
donated his new US Wings G=1 flight jacket
to the newly constructed Flying Tigers Museum
in China, which is dedicated to commemorating
the sacrifice of American blood in the defense of
China and Burma, and the fight against Japanese
imperialism in WWIL.

Visiting the website (wWww.uswings.com)
provides a great adventure in the purchase of a
leather bomber or flight jacket and is rich with
the ambiance of American military history. There
are sections devoted to every type and style of
flight jacket. Styles can be based on standard
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military specifications (true to the patterns
of the Second World War) as well as modern
designs. Every jacket’s history and development™
is charted. Visitors can learn about the Flying
Tigers, the Tuskegee Airmen, the Women’s Air
Force Service Pilots (WASP), Audie Murphy,
and General Keith Ware, among others, while
they browse. The most unenlightened person can
quickly learn how to distinguish between a flight
jacket and a bomber jacket, know the difference
between the A-2 and G-1 flight jackets, and
grow to appreciate what men had to do in the
B-3 bombers of WWIIL. The site boasts links
to several prominent military, patriotic, and
aviation organizations and even offers its own
“Gold Site Award” to other websites that meet its
criteria. A visit to the website can be interesting,
informative, and addicting. David Hack’s US
Wings website is dedicated to preserving the
memory of U.S. military artifacts and important
American military history.

US Wings has become a leader in the *“dot-
com” industry by setting the highest standards
for business conducted on the Internet while
honoring the traditions and sacrifices of the
fighting service men and women of the United
States.
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The Castle

he story of David Hack and US Wings has

a fairy tale quality to it, and no fairy tale is
complete without a castle. As the years passed,
both the Hack family and their business grew.
Eventually, Lani had given birth to three healthy
children: Brittany, Brenton, and Brooke. Visits
to the US Wings website increased daily, and its
sales expanded internationally. The Hacks were
now owners of a very profitable business, and
then, like in a myth, Sarge found his castle.

When Brittany Hack was 12 years old, she
was in her father’s study perusing an extremely
old book in order to do a school project on her
family history. The book, which had belonged
to her grandmother, was a study of the history
and heraldry of the Ffrench family lineage. Viola
French was an illiterate, working class woman,
who knew neither the history nor heritage of her
bloodline, which was documented in the book
now held by her granddaughter.

Ellis Hack had guaranteed' his  wife’s
condemnation to ignorance and poverty through
abuse, neglect, and abandonment. She never
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knew that her bloodline was originally one of
conquering Norman royalty, located in Ireland
after the Norman conquest of 1066 under William
the Conqueror. French was one of the most
~ prominent tribes of Galway, settled in Wexford
County, Ireland. By 1400, the French family
had built a functional, medieval-walled castle in
Wexford County, and the family heads gained
the title of Sovereign in Galway by 1444. For the
next three centuries, the dominant male family
member of the French family was the “mayor”
of Galway, Ireland.

By the 17th century, the socioeconomic
situation in Ireland forced the migration of
numerous Irish to the New World, and James
Ffrench, born in Galway in 1650, left for
America in 1671. His arrival in Maryland was
recorded there, and the migration of his bloodline
to Kentucky over 100 years later in 1785, with
sixty other Catholic families, was documented in
Saint Mary’s Parish records. Ignatius French was
the head of the French family contingent that
crossed the Appalachian Mountains and settled
in Sunfish, Kentucky. According to birth records,
descendants of this bloodline lived in Sunfish and
its region until 1911, when Viola French, David’s
mother, was born.
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Since it was documented that David Hack was
a direct descendant of the French bloodline of
Galway, Ireland, he was a family member entitled
to a percentage of the profits made from the sale
of any property of French land, or in this case,
the castle. It was an unbelievable coincidence,
but the French castle was actually being shown
to potential buyers when the Hacks discovered
their lineage. So, without much fanfare or legal
wrangling about the actual sale of French castle
in Wexford County, Ireland, David Hack and
the new owners soon came to an agreement
about both the property’s ownership and Hack’s
family’s royal recognition.

Hesge fem e e

French Family Crest
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He did not need the castle, but he did want
any title that he was eligible for that would
prove his lineage. He wanted his mother’s name
verified and his children’s ancestry recorded and
attributed to them. There was a standard legal
procedure to settle the estate, and The Republic
of Ireland bestowed the title of knight on Hack.
David Hack was now Sir David Hack, and the
family crest, the French shield, surrounded by tree
leaves and crowned with a dolphin over a helmet,
became an icon on the US Wings website along
with documentation of the family’s ancestry.
Viola French, the woman who had worked like a
peasant all her life, died never knowing she was
heir to a royal title.
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The Pilot Shop

In the same year Hack was knighted, the river
near the US Wings warehouse flooded and
damaged over a half million dollars worth of
inventory. Unbeknownst to Hack, during the
building of his business, their insurance did
not cover flooding, so it appeared as though
US Wings was sunk, both metaphorically and
literally. As David and Lani stood knee deep in
the floodwater of the warehouse while jackets,
furniture, and computers floated about in ruin,
the situation seemed hopeless and the battle
appeared lost, but the warrior in Hack refused to
accept defeat. "

His next move? Find higher ground, build a
store, not just a warehouse, and have a shop that
commemorates the sacrifice of every branch of
the armed services. Most importantly, continue
fighting. “Every good thing I found in life came
out of the hard times. The flood was just another
one of those hard times.” With fervent resolve,
the new US Wings headquarters and retail store
was built in Hudson, Ohio. “The world is our
customer.”

The “trendy” new shop gets its ambiance
from Hack’s extensive collection of memorabilia
dedicated to the fighting men and women of the
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USA. It is, in essence, a military museum in
miniature. The store is filled with every flight
jacket imaginable. Also, every form of military
issue clothing can be purchased. The windows
and shelves are filled with hand carved flying
machines of every era, pictures, posters, and
gifts of military style. The walls are filled with
information about military men and women,
battles, and other US Wings memorabilia. It is
a tribute to all of those who served the United
States of America; those who came home and
those who did not.

David Hack’s life, sacrifices and
accomplishments in the face of extreme adversity
are examples of the spirit of anyone who has
feared, doubted, suffered, and even failed, but
refused to quit. And is this not an embodiment
of one of life’s great lessons? One is never really
defeated, until one gives up.

g S

Ladyg Lani and
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 National Personnel Records Center

Miliury Personnel Records, 9700 Page Avenue St. Lowis, Missouri 63132-5100

Octaber 20, 201

RE: Veteran's Name: VIACK, David D
SSN/SN:
Request Number: 1-10039373661

Thank you for contacting the Nativnul Personnel Records Center. We are providing the releasable mititary service
information based on restrictions imposed hy the military services consistent with Departiment of Delense
regulations and the provisions of the Freeduws of Information Act and the Privacy Act of 1974, Releasable
information has been transeribed, photocopicd, or a combination of both, i order to comply with vour request.

If additional infonnation is needed, the Privacy Act of 1974 requires the written consent {signature) of the individng)
10 whom the record pertains. 1 the individual s deceased, we must have the written consent of the next of kin and
proof of death. The next of kin is defined as; unremurried widow or widower, son, daughter, father, mother, brother
or sister. Tie following are acceptabie forms of proof of death:

»  Decath centificate

e Newspaper zrticle (obitunry) or death notice

s Coroner's report of death

»  Funeral direclor's sipned statemen oof death

v Verdicl of conaner's jury

+ Ifdeath otcurred outside the United States, any ducwnent similar to one of the preceding five, ara
repont of death sigaed by a United States consul or other agent of the State Depuriment.

If you have questions or comments regarding this response, you may contact us at 314-801-0800 or by mail at the
address shown in the ketterhend above. 11 you comtact us, please relerence the Request Number Hsted above. If you
are a veteran, or a degeased veteran’s nest of kin, please consider submitting vour future requests antine by visiting

us at htpifvepees archives pov.

Sincerely, «.  Wa Value Qur

‘:}_ Y Veterans' Privacy
KM £ : ’g\“‘:%L:'r s Ao if W fetee
GREGORY GATES SF failed to protect it
Team A

Reference Core Four

Enclosure(s)

Natignal Archives and Records Adminiseration
hitpffwww.naragaviregionalistlouss.htm!
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[ INFORMATION RELEASABLE UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT _|

NAME;
DAVID DENTON HACK

I

O

BRANCH OF SERVICE AND SERIAL/SERVICE NUMBER(S)
COARST GUARD 312996 & ARMY 23178766

DATES OF SERVICE:

4/2/1964 TO B8/13/1973

ACTIVE DUTY TN COAST GUARD 4/24/1957 TG 4/21/1861 & ACILVRE DUTY IN ARMY

CDUTY STATUS:
RETIRED

RANK/GRADE:
- 5PC

[ SALARY:
B/A

SOURCE OF COMMISSION:
N/A

PROMOTION SEQUENCE NUMBER:
N/A

SEE ATTACIHED

ASSIGNMENTS AND GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATIONS:

MILITARY EDUCATION:
SEE ATVACHED

DECORATIONS AND AWARDS:
SEE ATTACHED

NOT IN FIlF

ERANSCRIPT OF COURT-MARTIAL TRIAL:
P

HOTOGRAPH:
N/A

PLACE OF ENTRY:
CTNCINNATL, OH

PLACE OF SEPARATION:
FT BENJAMIN HARRISON, LN

FOR DECEASED VETERAN ONLY

"PLACE OF BIRTH

DATE OF DEATH

LOCATION OF DEATH

PLACE OF BURIAL

NOTE: N/A denotes information is not available in the veteran's records

NATIONAL ARCHIVES AND RECORDE ADMINISTRATION

NA FORM 13164 ey 02-02)
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Paid Advertisement

Sergeant First Class (SFC) David D. Hack, U.S. Army Retired
Purple Heart 1968 Vietnam

A retired U.S. Army man, Sgt. David Hack (or “Sarge” as he is affectionately known) is the
CEOQ of US Wings Inc and comes from a family with deep military ties. His father served in
WWII and his two oldest brothers served in the USMC and saw combat in Korea. Traglcally,
Sarge lost his third brother who was also an aviator.

Sarge joined the US Coast Guard in 1957 and served for four years. He later enlisted in the US |
Army in 1964, where he eventually became a sergeant with the 1st Infantry Division. He was
serving with the Big Red One in Lai Khe, Vietnam in 1968 when he earned the Purple Heart
for combat injuries that ultimately ended his military career. However, due to military over-
sight, Sarge never received the actual medal at the time. This oversight was finally rectified
43 years later, when Sarge finally received his Purple Heart medal in a ceremony in Hudson
“on June 30, 2011. After a full year in the hospital and three years ot medical hold, Sarge was
medically retired from the US Army in 1973 as a SFC E-7.

Before retiring, Sarge was an Army recruiter in Ohio and won the title of the nation’s Number
One Recruiter from 1969-1973, using a customized Array jeep and a custom-painted Corvette
as recruiting tools. In fact, Sgt. Hack’s jeep has been enshrined in the Pratt Museum in Fort -

- Campbell KY, the home of the 101st ABN Division: Sgt. Hack’s jeep is one of only two jeeps
- to ever be enshrined in a US Military Museum, the other belonging to Gen. George S. Patton
(whose jeep is enshrined at Fort Knox, KY). Since being acquired by the museum, Sarge’s

" jeep has only been driven ouce... by Gen. William Westmoreland, who drove it in a parade.
After the military, Sarge went on to a career in law enforcement; he is a former Hudson police-
man, 2 former Summit County Deputy Sheriff, and a former Chief of Police of Sebring, Ohio.

Sarge, along with wife Lani, founded US Wings in 1986. Forerunners in web marketing,
the couple tossed aside mail order marketing and took to the web early. They were the first
internet retailer in the state of Ohio and one of the first in the country. Together, they grew
the business into the suceess it js today. Their client list reads like a jet-set guest list of
Holtywood luminaries, international dignitaries, politicians from presidents on down, the
Who’s Who of corporate aviation and, just as important, regular. folks from all over the world.

The synergy Hack has created between business and military experience has earned US Wings
prestigious billing in several famous films and notoriety as the undisputed leader in vintage-
styled leather. As an authority on aviation flight gea: Sarge is a sought-after consultant to the
movie and garment industry.

Sarge is also a descendent and member of the Royal Firench Family of Ireland, which goes back
to 1278. Ffrench was one of the most prominent Tribes of Galway and settled in County Wex-
ford, Ireland. A member of the Ffrench family came to America in 1671, settling in Maryland
and eventually migrating to Kentucky in 1785. Sarge’s mother, Viola A. Ffrench, was bora in
1911 in Sunfish KY. She was a direct descendant of the Royal Ffrench Family of Ireland, mak- -
ing Sarge the Heir of the Royal Family in the United States. In Ireland to this day, and there is
still a Lord and Lady Ffrench living at Castle Ffrench, at Ballinamore Bridge in County Galway.

h

Sarge resides in Hudson with his wife Lani (preéident of US Wings), their three children
Brittany, Brenton & Brooke, and their dog, Lance.

“Go ahead and be yourself, because those who mind don’t matter,
and those who matter don’t mind.” — Bernard Baruch (1870-1965)
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